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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA 

ATLANTA DIVISION jjtEj) IN CtERKS IDff CE 
U .s.P .C . OailtB 

W "I 
Wmeru 
~ 

PU 

NO. L &3-61-04,9 3 &AP) 

GEORGE E. "SONNY" PERDUE, in 
his official capacity as Governor 
of Georgia; TERRY COLEMAN, in his 
official capacity as Speaker of the House 
of Representatives of Georgia; ERIC B. 
JOHNSON, in his official capacity as 
President Pro Tem of the Georgia State 
Senate; and CATHY COX, 
in her official capacities as Secretary of 
State of Georgia and Chair of the State 
Election Board, 

DEFENDANTS. 

ORIGINAL 

AUG 6 2003 
SARA LARIOS, WAIT AIRES, 
VIRGINIA A. BALFOUR, 
GEORGIA BENTON, PAM 
BOHANNON, MERRI BRANTLEY, 
JOEY BRUSH, CRAIG BLIRNSED, 
ASHLENE CORK, DONALD CORK, 
ROBERT F.DALLAS, BETA DODD, 
P. MARTIN ELLARD, SETH HARP, 
DAVID MARKEY, FELIX MORING, 
ROBERT H. OWEN, SR., LINDA 
PARKER, CHARLES PAYNE, JR., 
ROY ROBERTS, NANCY 
SCHAEFER, AUSTIN SCOTT, 
BOB TANGO, DEBBIE TANGO, 
CHARLIE TANKSLEY, DON 
THOMAS, MARL TYSON, JACK 
WILLIAMSON and DAVID YOUNG; 

PLAINTIFFS, 
v. 

CIVIL ACTION FILE 
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PLAINTIFS' FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY 
INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER RELIEF 

COME NOW SARA LARIOS, WHIT BYRES, VIRGINIA A. BALFOUR, 

GEORGIA BENTON, PAM BOHANNON, MERRI BRANTLEY, JOEY 

BRUSH, CRAIG BURNSED, ASHLENE CORK, DONALD CORK, ROBERT F . 

DALLAS, BETA DODD, P. MARTIN ELLARD, SETH HARP, DAVID 

MARKEY, FELIX MORING, ROBERT H. OWEN, SR., LINDA PARKER, 

CHARLES PAYNE, JR., ROY ROBERTS, NANCY SCHAEFER, AUSTIN 

SCOTT, BOB TANGO, DEBBIE TANGO, CHARLIE TANKSLEY, DON 

THOMAS, MARC TYSON, JACK WILLIAMSON AND DAVID YOUNG, all 

Plaintiffs in the above-styled action ("Plaintiffs"), and, for their First Amended 

Complaint for Declaratory, Injunctive and other Relief, show this Court as follows: 

NATURE OF THE CASE 

1 . 

This is an action challenging the validity, under both the United States 

Constitution and federal statutes, of Georgia's Congressional Representative 

districts ("the current Congressional redistricting plan") and the constitutionality of 

the current electoral representational plans for the Georgia Senate and the Georgia 

House of Representatives (collectively, "the current state legislative redistricting 
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Republican voters and Representatives solely because of their party affiliation and 

political beliefs; and (4) the continued use of the districts in the current 

Congressional and state legislative redistricting plans cannot be justified as 

furthering any legitimate state interest and is therefore unconstitutional . Upon 

such declarations, Plaintiffs request injunctive relief, prohibiting further 

qualifications or elections from being conducted under the current Congressional 

and state legislative redistricting plans . Plaintiffs further request that, in the event 

that constitutional plans are not enacted and precleared under 42 U.S.C. § 1973c in 

sufficient time for 2004 candidate qualifying period and elections to proceed 

according to the statutory schedule, the Court formulate and implement 

redistricting plans for Georgia's Congressional and state legislative districts that 

comport with constitutional and statutory requirements . Finally, Plaintiffs seek 

their costs and attorney's fees pursuant to 42 U.S .C . § 1988 . 

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION 

2. 

This action arises under Article I, § 2 and Article IV, §2 of the United States 

Constitution, the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States 

Constitution, 2 U.S .C. §§ 2a, 2b and 2c and 28 U.S.C. §§2201 and 2202 . This 

action is brought under 42 U.S .C. §§ 1983 and 1988 . 
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3 . 

This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S .C . §§ 1331, 1343(a)(3) and 

(4), 1983, 2201, 2202 and 2284. 

4. 

Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) and Local 

Rule 3.1B(1) . 

5 . 

A three-judge court is required pursuant to 28 U.S .C. § 2284(a) because this 

action challenges the constitutionality of the apportionment of Georgia's 

Congressional and state legislative districts . In this Complaint and by separate 

pleading, Plaintiffs request the appointment of a three judge court. 

6 . 

Plaintiffs have complied with the provisions of O.C .G.A . § 21-2-32(g) by 

providing a copy of this action to the Chair of the Georgia State Election Board via 

certified mail, in addition to personal service. A copy has also been served upon 

the Georgia Attorney General by certified mail . 
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PARTIES 

7. 

Plaintiff Sara Larios is a Republican, a registered voter of the State of 

Georgia and resides in the Eighth Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 

17 and Georgia House of Representatives District 48 . Georgia Senate District 17 

has a population deviation of 4.97% and Georgia House of Representatives District 

48 is a multimember district with a population deviation of - .27%. Plaintiff Larios 

desires to participate in the electoral and political processes of the State on the 

basis of equality with other citizens of the State without having her voting strength 

diluted or debased through use of the current redistricting plans for Georgia's 

Congressional, state Senate and House of Representatives Districts. Larios is 

white . 

8 . 

Plaintiff Whit Ayres is a registered voter of the State of Georgia and resides 

in the Sixth Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 56 and Georgia House 

of Representatives District 40. Georgia Senate District 56 has a population 

deviation of 4.97% and Georgia House of Representatives District 40 is a single 

member district with a population deviation of 4.17% . Plaintiff Ayres desires to 

participate in the electoral and political processes of the State on the basis of 
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equality with other citizens of the State without having his voting strength diluted 

or debased through use of the current redistricting plans for Georgia's 

Congressional, state Senate and House of Representatives Districts. Ayres is white. 

9 . 

Plaintiff Virginia Ann Balfour is a registered voter of the State of Georgia 

and resides in the Seventh Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 09 and 

Georgia House of Representatives District 70 . Georgia Senate District 09 has a 

population deviation of 4.98% and Georgia House of Representatives District 70 is 

a multimember district with a population deviation of 3.05% . Plaintiff Balfour 

desires to participate in the electoral and political processes of the State on the 

basis of equality with other citizens of the State without having her voting strength 

diluted or debased through use of the current redistricting plans for Georgia's 

Congressional, state Senate and House of Representatives Districts . Balfour is 

white. 

10. 

Plaintiff Georgia Benton is a registered voter of the State of Georgia and 

resides in the Twelfth Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 2 and 

Georgia House of Representatives District 123. The Twelfth Congressional 

District is overpopulated by 8 people ; Georgia House of Representatives District 
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Plaintiff Merri Brantley is a Republican, a registered voter of the State of 

Georgia and resides in the Seventh Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 

48 and Georgia House of Representatives District 64 . Georgia Senate District 48 

has a population deviation of 4.79% and Georgia House of Representatives District 

is a single member district with a population deviation of 4.79% . Plaintiff Brantley 

desires to participate in the electoral and political processes of the State on the 

basis of equality with other citizens of the State without having her voting strength 

diluted or debased through use of the current redistricting plans for Georgia's 

Congressional, state Senate and House of Representatives Districts. Brandeyy is 

white . 

13 . 

Plaintiff Joey Brush is a Republican, a registered voter of the State of 

Georgia and resides in the Ninth Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 24 

and Georgia House of Representatives District 79 . Plaintiff Brush is the State 

Senator for Senate District 24. The Ninth Congressional District is overpopulated 

by 35 people; Georgia Senate District 24 has a population deviation of 4.25% and 

Georgia House of Representatives District 79 is a single member district with a 

population deviation of -1 .56%. Plaintiff Brush desires to participate in the 

electoral and political processes of the State on the basis of equality with other 
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citizens of the State without having his voting strength diluted or debased through 

use of the current redistricting plans for Georgia's Congressional, state Senate and 

House of Representatives Districts. Brush is white . 

14 . 

Plaintiff Craig Burnsed is a registered voter of the State of Georgia and 

resides in the Seventh Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 30 and 

Georgia House of Representative District 26. Georgia Senate District 30 has a 

population deviation of 4.91 % and Georgia House of Representatives District 26 is 

a single member district with a population deviation of 4.79%. Plaintiff Bumsed 

desires to participate in the electoral and political processes of the State on the 

basis of equality with other citizens of the State without having his voting strength 

diluted or debased through use of the current redistricting plans for Georgia's 

Congressional, state Senate and House of Representatives Districts. Burnsed is 

white . 

15 . 

Plaintiff Bob Clarke is a Republican, a registered voter of the State of 

Georgia and resides in the Tenth Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 53 

and Georgia House of Representatives District 01 . Georgia Senate District 53 has 

a population deviation of 4.97% and Georgia House of Representatives District O1 
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24 . 

Plaintiff Robert H. Owen, Sr. is a Republican, a registered voter of the State 

of Georgia and resides in the Sixth Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 

56 and Georgia House of Representatives District 41 . Georgia Senate District 56 

has a population deviation of 4.97% and Georgia House of Representatives District 

41 is a single member district with a population deviation of 4.94%. Plaintiff 

Owen desires to participate in the electoral and political processes of the State on 

the basis of equality with other citizens of the State without having his voting 

strength diluted or debased through use of the current redistricting plans for 

Georgia's Congressional, state Senate and House of Representatives Districts. 

Owen is white. 

25 . 

Plaintiff Linda Parker is a Republican, a registered voter of the State of 

Georgia and resides in the Seventh Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 

21 and Georgia House of Representatives District 15 . Georgia Senate District 21 

has a population deviation of 4.98% and Georgia House of Representatives District 

15 is a single member district with a population deviation of 3.89% . Plaintiff 

Parker desires to participate in the electoral and political processes of the State on 

the basis of equality with other citizens of the State without having her voting 
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strength diluted or debased through use of the current redistricting plans for 

Georgia's Congressional, state Senate and House of Representatives Districts. 

Parker is white. 

26 . 

Plaintiff Charles Payne, Jr . is a registered voter of the State of Georgia and 

resides in the Tenth Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 54 and Georgia 

House of Representatives District 04. Georgia Senate District 54 has a population 

deviation of 4.68% and Georgia House of Representatives District 04 is a single 

member district with a population deviation of 4.92% . Plaintiff Payne desires to 

participate in the electoral and political processes of the State on the basis of 

equality with other citizens of the State without having his voting strength diluted 

or debased through use of the current redistricting plans for Georgia's 

Congressional, state Senate and House of Representatives Districts. Payne is white. 

27 . 

Plaintiff Roy Roberts is a registered voter of the State of Georgia and resides 

in the Ninth Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 45 and Georgia House 

of Representatives District 71 . The Ninth Congressional District is overpopulated 

by 35 people ; Georgia Senate District 45 has a population deviation of 4.97% and 

Georgia House of Representatives District 71 is a multimember district with a 
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population deviation of 1 .82%. Plaintiff Roberts desires to participate in the 

electoral and political processes of the State on the basis of equality with other 

citizens of the State without having his voting strength diluted or debased through 

use of the current redistricting plans for Georgia's Congressional, state Senate and 

House of Representatives Districts. Roberts is white. 

28 . 

Plaintiff Nancy Schaefer is a Republican, a registered voter of the State of 

Georgia and resides in the Ninth Congressional District, Georgia Senate District 51 

and Georgia House of Representatives District 07. The Ninth Congressional 

District is overpopulated by 35 people ; Georgia Senate District 51 has a population 

deviation of 4.99% and Georgia House of Representatives District 07 is a single 

member district with a population deviation of 4.15%. Plaintiff Schaefer desires to 

participate in the electoral and political processes of the State on the basis of 

equality with other citizens of the State without having her voting strength diluted 

or debased through use of the current redistricting plans for Georgia's 

Congressional, state Senate and House of Representatives Districts . Schaefer is 

white. 
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duty of signing into law redistricting plans for Georgia's Congressional and state 

legislative districts which comport with federal constitutional and statutory 

requirements. 

38 . 

Defendant Terry Coleman is a resident of the State of Georgia and is sued in 

his representative capacity as the Speaker of the Georgia House of Representatives, 

one of the bodies of the Georgia General Assembly charged with redistricting 

Georgia's Congressional and state legislative districts in a manner consistent with 

federal constitutional and statutory requirements . The Georgia House of 

Representatives passed the current redistricting plans. 

39. 

Defendant Eric B . Johnson is a resident of Georgia and is sued in his 

representative capacity as the President Pro Tern of the Georgia Senate and the 

highest officer elected by that body. The state Senate is one of the bodies of the 

General Assembly charged with redistricting Georgia's state legislative and 

Congressional Representative Districts in a manner consistent with federal 

constitutional and statutory requirements . The Georgia Senate passed the current 

redistricting plans. 
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40. 

Defendant Cathy Cox is a resident of Georgia, resides in this District and is 

Georgia's Secretary of State and Chair of the State Elections Board . She is sued in 

her representative capacity as the Constitutional officer of the State charged with 

the duty of conducting elections in Georgia in a manner consistent with federal 

constitutional and statutory requirements . 

41 . 

While all of the above-named Defendants are sued in their official capacities 

and all Defendants act in their official capacities under color of state law, because 

the current redistricting plans violate federal constitutional and statutory mandates, 

Defendants' actions with respect to the conduct of elections under the current 

redistricting plans are outside the scope of their authority in those capacities . 

BACKGROUND FACTS 

The Congressional Plan 

42 . 

Prior to enactment of the current Congressional redistricting plan, the State 

of Georgia was divided into 11 Congressional Representative districts . 
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District Total 
Number Deviation (by person) 
01 34 
02 8 
03 21 
04 -37 
OS 0 
06 -2 
07 -21 
08 -27 
09 35 
10 -25 
11 -29 
12 8 

Overall deviation 72 

51 . 

Based on the above deviations, the voting strength of citizens in Georgia's 

purported Congressional Districts 1, 2, 3, 9, 12 and 13, including that of Plaintiffs 

Bohannon, Scott, Moring, Brush, Roberts, Schaefer, Benton, Williamson and 

Dodd, is severely diluted, as citizens in other purported districts have 

disproportionately greater voting strength . 

52. 

Furthermore, 2 U.S .C. § 2c provides that a state's Congressional 

representatives are to be elected from single member districts . 

Case 1:03-cv-00693-CAP     Document 54     Filed 08/06/2003     Page 14 of 50




32 

overpopulating the northern Georgia districts, i .e ., the dilution of the votes of 

Plaintiffs and other citizens of those districts, was well-known to the Democratic 

leadership of the 2001-2002 General Assembly and to then-Governor Roy E. 

Barnes . 

62. 

During the General Assembly's special redistricting session in 2002, the 

third redistricting session of 2001-2002, the General Assembly passed and then- 

Governor Barnes signed into law the current Senate redistricting plan . The current 

redistricting plan for the state Senate is accurately represented by Exhibit "B" 

attached hereto . 

63 . 

The ideal size of each of the fifty-six state Senate districts in Georgia is 

146,187. The current redistricting plan for the state Senate has an overall range of 

population deviation of 9.98%. Of the 56 districts, 29 districts are centered in the 

northern part of the state, 11 districts are centered in the area of Fulton and DeKalb 

counties and 16 districts are centered in southern Georgia . 
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member districts have, through their representative, only one vote on any given 

matter, voters in multimember districts have two, three or even four votes on the 

same matter . 

70. 

Based on the above deviations and the imposition of multi-member districts, 

the voting strength of citizens in state House Districts 4, 26, 28, 35, 41, 67, 87, 

101, 117 and 123, including that of the Plaintiffs listed in the immediately 

preceding paragraph, is severely diluted, as citizens in other districts have 

disproportionately greater voting strength . Furthermore, citizens living in single 

member districts, including the above-listed Plaintiffs, are afforded less 

representation than residents of multimember districts . 

71 . 

Furthermore, the particular combination of multimember and single member 

districts in the House redistricting plan were used solely to preserve Democratic 

incumbents' seats in areas in which the 2000 census numbers warranted a 

reduction in the number of those seats. 
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72. 

The technology and statistics available to the state of Georgia in the state 

legislative redistricting process allowed the drawing of districts with minimal 

population deviations, without the inclusion of discriminatory multimember 

districts. 

73 . 

In fact, alternative state legislative redistricting plans were available to the 

General Assembly which proved that lower population deviations were not only 

possible but easily attained and were therefore practicable . In addition, these 

alternative plans distributed state legislative seats geographically according to 

population figures. 

74. 

However, the Democrat leadership in the 2001-2002 General Assembly and 

then-Governor Roy E. Barnes systematically and intentionally used their 

knowledge of past and anticipated future growth to identify fast-growing state 

legislative districts and slow or no growth districts, then overpopulated the fast- 

growth districts and underpopulated the slow-growth districts. 
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7s . 

The systematic and intentional overpopulating of the state legislative 

districts in northern Georgia and underpopulating of the districts in urban Fulton 

County, DeKalb County and southern Georgia, constitutes intentional and 

invidious discrimination against the voters of northern Georgia in that their votes 

are diluted vis-a-vis the voters in the underpopulated districts. Because of growth 

patterns, this dilution will be exacerbated throughout the decade, a fact known to 

the Democrat leadership of the 2001-2002 General Assembly and then-Governor 

Barnes . 

76. 

Although the basic principle of representative government is that the weight 

of a citizen's vote cannot be made to depend on where that citizen lives in a state, 

the intent and effect of the Georgia redistricting plans was and is to make the value 

of citizens' votes dependent on where they live . The Democratic-controlled 

General Assembly and then-Governor Barnes systematically and intentionally 

created state legislative districts with very substantial disparities in voting age 

population, citizens of voting age, registered voters and individuals actually casting 

votes, thereby giving differing voting power to voters in different parts of the state . 
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77. 

The Democrat leadership of the 2001-2002 General Assembly and 

then-Governor Barnes systematically and intentionally underpopulated Senate 

districts designated as majority-minority districts and those with minority 

incumbent members . Individuals', including Plaintiffs', right to vote is 

unconstitutionally impaired when it is diluted in this manner in comparison with 

the votes of citizens living in majority-minority districts or those with minority 

incumbent members . 

78 . 

In addition, the Democrat leadership of the 2001-2002 General Assembly 

and then-Governor Barnes systematically and intentionally overpopulated districts 

of Republican incumbents or districts which were identified as likely to elect a 

Republican and intentionally created multimember districts designed to maintain 

Democratic incumbents, decrease Republican incumbents and allow the same 

number or more Democratic seats to exist in areas which should have lost seats. 

79 . 

By systematically packing voters perceived to be Republicans into 

overpopulated high growth districts and combining multimember districts with 

Case 1:03-cv-00693-CAP     Document 54     Filed 08/06/2003     Page 19 of 50




40 

82 . 

The current state legislative redistricting plans are so irrational on their face 

that the natural result will be to deprive citizens of the benefit of the principle of 

one person, one vote and their representational rights . There are no legitimate state 

policies, consistently applied, which can explain or justify the population 

deviations in the current state legislative redistricting plans. 

83 . 

Unless state legislative districts of equal population are established, 

members of Georgia's General Assembly will be elected from malapportioned 

plans in violation of the federal constitutional and statutory law set forth above . 

Furthermore, unless multimember districts are abolished, citizens living in those 

districts will be afforded greater representation to the detriment of voters residing 

in single member districts, including some Plaintiffs . 

84 . 

A genuine controversy exists between Plaintiffs and Defendants as to the 

matters asserted herein. Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law and no other 

way to guarantee their rights in connection with future elections other than through 

the relief sought in this lawsuit. Plaintiffs will suffer irreparable harm if elections 

are allowed to proceed under the current Congressional and state legislative 
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redistricting plans, and the injury will continue until those redistricting plans are 

declared to be unlawful, their use enjoined by this Court and districts which 

comport with the principle of one person, one vote are adopted . 

COUNT ONE 

VIOLATION OF RIGHT TO EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE LAWS 

85 . 

Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs 1- 

84 of this Complaint as if set forth herein. 

86. 

Article 4, Section 2 of the United States Constitution provides : "The citizens 

of each state shall be entitled to all privileges and immunities of citizens in the 

several states ." Pursuant to this and other provisions of the United States 

Constitution, the right to vote is a fundamental right guaranteed to U.S. citizens . 

87 . 

Section 1 of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution 

provides : "No state shall make or enforce any law which shall abridge the 

privileges or immunities of citizens of the united States; nor shall any state deprive 
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any person of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor deny to any 

person within its jurisdiction the equal protection of the laws." 

88 . 

Under the Fourteenth Amendment, it is unlawful for a state to create 

electoral districts for public office with an imbalance in population unless a 

legitimate governmental interest requires the same. Furthermore, the equal 

protection clause of the 14`x' Amendment to the United States Constitution requires 

racial neutrality in governmental decisionmaking, regardless of the races of those 

benefited or burdened by a particular racial classification . 

89 . 

The current version of 42 U.S .C. § 1983 provides, in relevant part : 

Every person who, under color of any statue, ordinance, 
regulation, custom, or usage, of any State or Territory of the 
District of Columbia, subjects, or causes to be subjected any 
citizen of the United States or other person within the 
jurisdiction thereof to the deprivation of any rights, 
privileges, or immunities secured by the Constitution and 
laws, shall be liable to the party injured in an action at law, 
suit in equity, or other proper proceeding for redress . . . 

90 . 

Defendants are "person[s]" and Plaintiffs are all "citizen[s] of the United 

States" within the scope of 42 U.S .C. § 1983 . The current redistricting plans were 
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enacted by the 2001-2002 General Assembly and then-Governor Barnes, all acting 

under color of state law. The continued use of the current redistricting plans by 

Defendants is action taken under color of state law . 

91 . 

Plaintiffs intend and desire to participate in the electoral and political 

processes of the State of Georgia on the basis of equality with other citizens of the 

State. 

92 . 

Plaintiffs' constitutional right to such equality in voting strength has been 

diluted and debased through the enactment and continued use of the current 

redistricting plans by which members of the Georgia General Assembly and 

Georgia's Congressional Representatives are to be elected. The dilution and 

debasement occurs through the overpopulation of districts, partisan 

gerrymandering, the particular use of multimember districts in the state House 

(which results in both overpopulation of single-member districts in which Plaintiffs 

reside and an illegal partisan gerrymandering) and, in the state Senate plan, the use 

of race as a predominant factor in the creation of the plan. 
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state subordinated all traditional neutral districting principles, specifically the 

principal redistricting criteria of population equality, to race, thereby intentionally 

and systematically creating majority-minority Senate districts with total 

populations significantly less than non majority-minority districts. 

96. 

There is no consistently applied legitimate state policy which can justify the 

population deviations in the current state legislative redistricting plans. Instead, 

the population deviations are designed to maximize the electoral effectiveness of 

Democrat political supporters and to minimize or dissipate the voting strength of 

Republican supporters . Furthermore, the use of racial classification in the Senate 

redistricting plan was not narrowly tailored to achieve any compelling state 

interest . Compliance with the Voting Rights Act does not require the creation of 

under populated majority-minority districts in comparison to either non majority- 

minority districts or ideal district population . Thus, the current state legislative 

redistricting plans intentionally and invidiously discriminate against the 

Republican Party, its members and other citizens who it may support as candidates, 

in violation of the United States Constitutional guarantees of the Fourteenth 

Amendment. 
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97 . 

The current Congressional and state legislative redistricting plans are gross 

partisan gerrymanders, which violate the United States Constitution's Fourteenth 

Amendment equal protection guarantee by fragmenting cohesive communities of 

interest and political subdivisions between purported districts in support of no 

legitimate or rational state interest . No legitimate public policy or governmental 

purpose is supported or furthered by these plans' needless division of these 

communities. This wanton fragmentation of cultural, ethnic, geographic economic 

and political communities results in a diminution of dilution of their voting rights, 

political power and influence . Leaving the current redistricting plans in place will 

cause a continued violate Plaintiffs' constitutional rights to equal protection. 

98 . 

There is no adequate remedy at law for the irreparable harm Plaintiffs suffer 

and continue to suffer through continued use of the current Congressional and state 

legislative redistricting plans. The use of those plans, which unconstitutionally 

abridges the voting rights of Plaintiffs to elect and be represented by members of 

the United States House of Representatives and the General Assembly, should be 

declared unconstitutional and enjoined . In the event that the Georgia General 

Assembly is unable to pass constitutional redistricting plans in time for the 2004 
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elections, this Court should draw such plans for use until such time as the Georgia 

General Assembly enacts Congressional and state legislative redistricting plans 

that comport with constitutional and statutory law . 

COUNT TWO 

VIOLATION OF FIRST AMENDMENT RIGHTS 

99 . 

Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs 1- 

98 of this Complaint as if set forth herein . 

100. 

The First Amendment to the United States Constitution provides the right of 

freedom of speech and of association . The current state legislative redistricting 

plans impinge upon the freedom of association rights guaranteed by the First 

Amendment of the United States Constitution by packing Republican-leaning 

districts, thereby penalizing Republican voters and representatives solely because 

of their party affiliation and political beliefs. Public debates on issues of public 

importance are also chilled in violation of the First Amendment. 
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101 . 

There is no consistently applied legitimate state policy which can justify the 

population deviations in these Republican-leaning districts in the current state 

legislative redistricting plans . 

102. 

There is no adequate remedy at law for the irreparable harm Plaintiffs suffer 

and continue to suffer through continued use of the current state legislative 

redistricting plans. The use of those plans, which unconstitutionally abridges the 

voting rights of Plaintiffs to elect and be represented by members of the General 

Assembly on an equal basis with all other citizens, should be declared 

unconstitutional and enjoined . In the event that the Georgia General Assembly is 

unable to pass constitutional state legislative redistricting plans in time for the 

2004 elections, this Court should draw such plans for use until such time as the 

Georgia General Assembly enacts plans that comport with constitutional and 

statutory law. 
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COUNT THREE 

VIOLATION OF ARTICLE I, § 2 OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION 

103 . 

Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs 1- 

102 of this Complaint as if set forth herein . 

104. 

Article I, § 2 of the United States Constitution requires that congressional 

representative districts within a state have an equal number of people . The current 

Georgia Congressional redistricting plan violates this one person, one vote 

requirement . 

105 . 

In addition, Article I of the United States Constitution vests the legislative 

power of the United States in two chambers : (1) the Senate, which was intended to 

represent the state ; and, (2) the House of Representatives, which was intended to 

represent the people . Members of the House of Representatives are to be chosen 

by "the people of the several states ." U.S. Constitution, Article I, § 2. 

106 . 

Under the Article I framework, the right to choose congressional 

representatives belongs not to the states, but to the people . Article I strictly 
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constrains the political party that controls a state legislature during a particular 

redistricting period from dictating the composition of the state's congressional 

delegations at the expense of the rights of the people to choose their members of 

the United States House of Representatives . Article I, § 4, the Election Clause, 

specifically limits the state of Georgia's authority in congressional elections to 

prescribing the times, places and manner of holding elections for senators and 

representatives. 

107 . 

The current Georgia Congressional redistricting plan exceeds the state's 

authority to regulate the times, places and manner of congressional elections and 

violates Article I, § 2 of the United States Constitution because it dictates election 

outcomes . The outcomes of Georgia congressional elections are substantially 

preordained by a carefully crafted gerrymander, which gives Georgia voters little 

more power than to ratify the results engineered by the authors of the Georgia 

Congressional plan. The existing Congressional plan frustrates the majority's will 

by drawing districts that jettison all neutral districting criteria to maximize 

Democratic advantage in congressional elections. 
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108 . 

There is no adequate remedy at law for the irreparable harm Plaintiffs will 

suffer through continued use of the purported Georgia Congressional redistricting 

plan. The use of that plan, which unconstitutionally abridges the voting rights of 

Plaintiffs to elect and be represented by members of the United States House of 

Representatives should be declared unconstitutional under Article I, § 2 of the 

United States Constitution and enjoined . In the event that the Georgia General 

Assembly is unable to pass constitutional Congressional redistricting plans in time 

for the 2004 elections, this Court should draw such plans for use until such time as 

the Georgia General Assembly enacts a Congressional plan that comports with 

constitutional law. 

COUNTFOUR 

VIOLATION OF 2 U.S.C. § 2c 

109. 

Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs 1- 

108 of this Complaint as if set forth herein. 

110. 

2 U.S.C . § 2c requires that any state entitled to more than one Representative 

in the United States Congress establish single member districts for the election of 
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such Representatives . The Georgia Congressional Representative Plan violates 2 

U.S.C . § 2c because Georgia has failed to create such congressional districts . 

Although the Georgia Congressional Plan purportedly contains congressional 

Representative districts, these districts are amalgamations of census geography or 

blocs bearing no identifiable relationship to any geographic entity . These 

purported districts are neither compact nor contiguous. They were created solely 

for partisan political purposes, and fail to have the minimum rational geographic or 

representational basis to constitute a single member district as contemplated . They 

are not Congressional Representative districts as contemplated and required by 

federal statute . 

111 . 

There is no adequate remedy at law for the irreparable harm Plaintiffs will 

suffer through continued use of the purported Georgia Congressional redistricting 

plan. Until Georgia is redistricted in the manner provided by Federal law, the 

Representatives from Georgia must be elected in the manner provided for in 2 

U.S.C . § 2a (c). Accordingly, Plaintiffs are entitled to injunctive and declaratory 

relief declaring Georgia's current Congressional redistricting plan unconstitutional, 

and enjoining all future election of Georgia's Congressional delegation until those 
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districts are created in a manner that does not violate the United States Constitution 

and federal statutes . 

WI IEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully prays that this Court grant the 

following relief: 

A) Assume jurisdiction of this case ; 

B) Make application to the Chief Judge of the Circuit to appoint a three- 

judge court to hear and decide this case in accordance with 28 U.S.C. 

2284, as this action involves statewide redistricting plans; 

C) Enter a declaratory judgment that the present apportionment of the 

current Congressional, Georgia Senate and Georgia House of 

Representatives districts violates the Fourteenth Amendment to the 

United States Constitution and 42 U.S .C . § 1983 in that the districts 

violate the equal protection clause ; 

D) Enter a declaratory judgment that the continued use of the current 

redistricting plans for Georgia's state legislative and Congressional 

districts violates the Article IV, §2 of the United States Constitution, 

the First and the Fourteenth Amendments to the United States 

Constitution and 42 U.S .C. § 1983 ; 
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E) Enter a declaratory judgment that the continued use of the current 

Congressional redistricting plan violates Article I, §§ 2 and 4 of the 

United States Constitution, the First and Fourteenth Amendments of 

the United States Constitution, 2 U.S .C . 2a, 2b, 2c and 42 U.S .C. § 

1983 . 

F) After entering the declaratory judgments as described above, enjoin 

all future elections of members of Georgia's General Assembly and 

Georgia's Congressional representatives until those plans are 

districted in a manner that does not violate federal statutes, the United 

States Constitution or the Georgia Constitution ; 

G) In the event that new redistricting plans are not enacted and precleared 

under Section 5 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, 42 U.S.C . § 1973c 

in time for such plans to be used in the 2004 elections, enter an order 

that creates Georgia's state legislative and Congressional districts in a 

manner consistent with the United States Constitution and federal 

statutes ; 

H) Award Plaintiffs their costs and attorney's fees of this action, pursuant 

to 42 U.S .C . § 1988 or as otherwise authorized by law ; and 
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D:\ J j()L~kCE ?OUp I!S Census PL9-1-I' I Populauun i. ouncs 
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